NORTHSIDE CHRISTIAN SCHOOL

PRESCHOOL PARENT HANDBOOK K4

Updated as of 10/16/20



2655 Schrock Road Westerville, OH 43081 614-882-1493 www.ncslions.org

A Ministry of Calvary Bible Church 3865 North High Street Columbus, OH 43214 Dear Parents,

Welcome to the Northside Christian Preschool. We are pleased that you have enrolled your child in our program. We ask that you look over this parent handbook and then keep it for future reference. Please have all your children's caregivers (e.g. extended family, nannies, etc.) review the handbook as well.

The purpose of this Parent Handbook is to provide information specifically related to ways that the school will partner with families to ensure a high-quality experience for all. The school has established several policies concerning program and classroom practices. These guidelines have been developed to communicate Northside's high standards of faith, practice, and academics and to reflect input from the administration, teachers, and parents. The policies and procedures described in this booklet are written to provide a clear description of what parents may expect of Northside K4, and what Northside expects of parents. Our goal is to provide exemplary early childhood services for our families.

We hope that your experience at Northside will enrich your lives in all areas and provide the resources that you need as parents to disciple your child to know and love Jesus Christ. We want you to be confident and secure in the fact that your child is loved and well cared for. We invite each parent and family to become actively involved in all aspects of our program. At Northside, we believe that a parent is their child's first teacher, and we want to be partners with you. Thank you for letting us travel on this journey with you and your child!

Sincerely, Jeff Peterson, Executive Director Jesse Stout, Principal

"Him we proclaim, warning everyone and teaching everyone with all wisdom, that we may present everyone mature in Christ. For this I toil, struggling with all His energy that He powerfully works within me." – Colossians 1: 28

Table of Contents

| Let Us Introduce Ourselves | 5 |
|---|----|
| Our Purpose and Philosophy | 5 |
| Purpose and philosophy of early childhood education | 6 |
| Admission Requirements | 7 |
| Enrollment Requirements | 7 |
| Withdrawal Policy | 8 |
| Waitlist Policies | 8 |
| Reenrollment | 8 |
| Disenrollment | 8 |
| Financial Information | 8 |
| Annual Tuition | 8 |
| Monthly Payments | 9 |
| Fees | 9 |
| Payment Options | 9 |
| Payment Policy | 9 |
| Late Pick-up Charges | 9 |
| Hours and Days of Operation | 10 |
| Supervision Policy | 10 |
| Class Transitioning | 10 |
| Curriculum Goals | 10 |
| Curriculum & Program Overview | 11 |
| Portfolios for K4 Progress Assessment | 11 |
| Child Management/Guidance Methods | 12 |
| Parent/Teacher Conferences | 12 |
| Custody Agreements | 13 |
| Child Abuse | 13 |
| Preschool Dress Guidelines | 13 |
| Meals and Snacks | 13 |
| Lunch | 13 |

| Food Storage | 13 |
|--|----|
| Nutrition Suggestions | 13 |
| Outdoor Play | 14 |
| Parent Participation | 14 |
| Field Trips/Transportation Policy | 15 |
| Arrival and Departure Procedures | 15 |
| Attendance/Absence Policy | 16 |
| Management of Illnesses | 16 |
| Medications | 17 |
| Accidents/Emergencies | 18 |
| School Delay and Closing Policies and Procedures | 19 |
| Latchkey | 19 |

Let Us Introduce Ourselves

Northside Christian School was established in 1971 to provide Christian children with an education of high academic quality in a thoroughly Christian atmosphere. The school has grown steadily since that time.

NCS is a ministry of Calvary Bible Church. Each member of the faculty is a born-again Christian, dedicated to serving the Lord through the ministry of teaching young people. Our faculty is well qualified, both spiritually and academically. Please pray for them daily.

The school consists of pre-school, kindergarten, elementary, middle, and high school levels. NCS is registered annually with the state of Ohio under the copy Rule of 3301-35-08, which provides that NCS is a non-chartered, non-tax supported school. A letter informing school families of this status is sent each year.

Our Purpose and Philosophy

Northside Christian School was established to provide high quality education in a thoroughly Christian atmosphere. The scriptural admonition that NCS has adopted as their guide is:

Train up a child in the way he should go; and when he is old he will not depart from it. Proverbs 22:6

In addition to teaching the basic skills and concepts, the school will teach about God and the world from a Christian viewpoint. Subjects will be taught with guidance from the standards prescribed by the State of Ohio, and the curriculum will be integrated with teachings of principles, truth, and ideals established in the Holy Bible.

The training of a child is regarded as the joint responsibility of the home, the church, and the school. Having these three units working together in a fully integrated effort is the most logical method by which to develop positive Christian personalities that are prepared to take their place in the home, in the church, and in society.

A primary purpose of Northside Christian School is to emphasize that all existing knowledge has been revealed to man by God and that it is a vital necessity for each person to have a personal relationship with Christ as Savior. To accomplish this task, all instruction must be from a viewpoint that is unmistakably Biblical.

Northside Christian School does not discriminate based on race, color, or national and ethnic origin in administration of its educational policies, admissions policies, and athletic and other school-administered programs.

Purpose and philosophy of early childhood education

The Northside Christian School philosophy of early childhood is to build a foundation that will support and facilitate the learning process of the whole child so that they may develop in all areas—mentally, physically, spiritually, socially and emotionally.

And Jesus increased in wisdom and in stature and in favor with God and man. Luke 2:52

We Believe:

- That an early childhood curriculum should encompass readiness skills acquisition, academic instruction, and learning skills development.
- That an early childhood curriculum should be balanced between a Christ-centered, learner-oriented, content-based, teacher-directed, developmentally appropriate program.
- That holistic learning occurs when the home, church, and schoolwork together, so the student finds their identity, the meaning of their life, and the purpose of their life.
- That children progress through certain developmental stages, mastering the tasks of one level before moving on to the next stage.
- That children are motivated by achievement, success, self-improvement, and a sense of accomplishment while pleasing God.
- That children have unique and individual learning styles.
- That an unmanageable child is an unteachable child.
- That a prerequisite to learning in every domain is an obedient spirit and a teachable heart.
- That children learn Christian behavior and Biblical values as modeled by their adult leader.
- Those values are formed when choices are made; therefore, Biblical instruction and application are given to the consequences of each choice.
- That God has created each person a whole being (mind, will and emotions), with individuality, uniqueness, dignity, and potential.
- That God's goal for mankind is to be conformed to the image of Christ. This change begins with salvation and progresses through the work of sanctification.
- That God has ordained the home and the church to educate and nurture through discipleship.

Admission Requirements

Students are accepted at Northside Christian Preschool based on administrative interviews with each family and the school board designee. Parents desiring to enroll a student should:

- 1. Visit the school for a get-acquainted tour and question/answer time.
- 2. Obtain an application and admissions packet of information.
- 3. Set up an observation time for the parent to observe a classroom in session and talk with the teacher when possible.
- 4. Fill out the application form and submit it along with the application fee to the school office.
- 5. After these initial steps, an appointment time will be set up for the Parent Interview with the administrator.

For all new students, a probationary period of six school weeks will be required for final acceptance and appointment to grade level. Parents will be notified of any intended change in grade placement within the six weeks period.

Enrollment Requirements

The child must be 4 years old by September 30 to enroll in our K4.

The following must be completed and turned in for the child to be enrolled and before their first day of school:

- Enrollment Fee
- Signed/Initialed Child Enrollment and Health Information Form
- Child Medical Statement signed by the child's physician
- NCS Database Form
- NCS Emergency Medical Form
- NCS Medicine Permission/Allergy Information Form
- NCS Emergency Pickup/Transportation Form

Please note the Child Medical Statement is valid for one year from the date of their last well exam and must be updated annually. Any change to this information must be communicated to the school office immediately so that current information is always on file. This is for the safety of your child.

Withdrawal Policy

Parents may withdraw their child from the school at any time. To withdraw a student, the parent is required to do so in writing prior to the 10th of the month. There will be no penalty; however, those who withdraw after the 10th of the month will be assessed the full month's tuition.

Waitlist Policies

Northside Christian Preschool reserves the right to prioritize applications based on the following criteria: siblings of currently enrolled families, families attending Calvary Bible Church, children of staff members, and all others. Within these groups, enrollment is offered according to the date the applications are received and the availability of agerelated openings.

When an opening becomes available, the family will be notified and given three business days to respond. If the family fails to respond or the offer is declined, we will move to the next family on the list. If the offer is accepted, the family will have one week to complete all necessary paperwork and pay all applicable fees.

Reenrollment

Reenrollment begins in January and includes an annual reenrollment fee.

Disenrollment

Disenrollment from the preschool may occur in the following situations:

- Tuition is not paid by the 30th of the next billing month
- A behavior management plan has been unsuccessful, or parents are not willing to work together with the school to resolve behavior issues.
- A parent or guardian does not comply with the signed "Parent Agreement."

Financial Information

Annual Tuition

Those choosing to pay tuition on an annual basis are entitled to a 2% discount if the full amount is paid by August 1st. Families who enroll after August 1st are entitled to the 2% discount if the full amount is paid within 10 days of acceptance.

Monthly Payments

The annual tuition is divided into ten or twelve equal monthly payments. The first payment is due on June 1st (12-month plan) or August 1st (ten-month plan) and the final payment is due on May 1st. To elect the twelve-month payment plan for the following year, enrollment forms must be received in the business office by April 30.

Fees

An application fee is charged for each child at the time of application. This fee is non-refundable.

An annual, non-refundable fee is due initially after the parent interview to be officially enrolled and annually upon reenrollment.

Activity/Food Supplement/Snack Fee: This fee is due by the first day of school, payable to

Northside Christian School and is to be turned in to the school office.

Payment Options

The parent will indicate on their application/re-enrollment form which payment option they would like. Payments may be made only through FACTS.

Payment Policy

All payments are due by the 10th of each month. Any account not paid on or before the 10th of the month is considered past due and will be assessed a \$35 late fee. If at the end of two months a payment is still due, and, unless prior arrangements have been made, the students will be denied attendance at NCS until the account is settled. Any curriculum fees and fines are due as they occur during the school year. Report cards and school records will be withheld if required payments are not made in full or if payment arrangements have not been approved by the financial administration. Our tax ID number is available upon request.

Late Pick-up Charges

A phone call is requested if a parent realizes that circumstances beyond their control are going to delay pick-up. The child, while waiting to be picked up will be supervised by a

staff member in the after-school Latchkey program. There is a charge, due the next school day, for Latchkey to cover school personnel costs.

Hours and Days of Operation

Northside K4 will follow the Northside Christian School schedule. Latchkey care for 4-year-olds will be available Monday – Friday from 3:30 - 6:00 p.m. (Wednesday to 5:30). A late fee will be charged if a child is not picked up by closing time.

A child who is not picked up by 3:30 p.m. will be supervised in Latchkey care and charged according to the rate in the latchkey information.

The preschool will follow the holiday and break schedule on the <u>NCS Academic</u> Calendar.

Supervision Policy

Children will always be supervised. The adult-child ratio will depend upon the children's ages, behavior, abilities, and activities. Children will be within sight and hearing distance of a staff member. This policy applies to indoor/outdoor play times, naptime, and meal times. When a child is sick, they will be isolated in an unused section of the classroom or office, but still within sight and hearing distance of a staff member.

Class Transitioning

The child must be 4 years old by September 30th. Therefore, for a child to transition from the K4 into our K5, they will be observed by the classroom teacher and tested by our school evaluator. The test results will be reviewed with the parents and at that time grade placement will be determined.

Curriculum Goals

The early years in a child's life set the time for future learning. Our curriculum is created to provide an overall framework for learning in all developmental areas. It focuses on providing each child with instruction and activities that are the pre-requisite for all learning, especially in the core subjects—Bible, reading, writing, and math.

Our curriculum is intended to address all developmental domains in an integrated and cohesive manner and prepare our students to engage in Northside Christian School's rigorous academic program. Our preschool classes primarily use a Christian-based curriculum.

Curriculum & Program Overview

Throughout the year, your child will bring home activity pages designed to strengthen foundational skills for future learning. Our core curriculum includes:

- Bible Bible stories from Genesis and creation through the ascension of Jesus
- Heritage Studies Pilgrims/Indians, Myself/My family, Our nation, Holidays, Friendship
- Science- Weather, Water & Air, Animals, Insects, Day & Night, Seasons, Colors
- Phonics Discussion skills, rhyming words, story sequencing, letters tracing, recognition, isolating and producing the sound, listening, and following directions
- Math Readiness Numbers 0 20, Shapes, money values, telling time, measurement

Additionally, K-4 students can enjoy other special classes such as:

- Music
- Art
- Library
- Chapel

Other special events may include:

- Fall Hike
- Thanksgiving Friendship Feast
- Christmas
- Henry the Hand (hand washing and staying healthy)
- 100 Days of School
- Valentines
- Peter Rabbit Day
- Field Day
- Field Trips

If you wish to help with one of these events, please let the teacher know.

Portfolios for K4 Progress Assessment

The portfolio will contain a sampling of your child's work. This collection of work, along with a teacher's assessment, will give you an overview of your child's abilities and help to determine strengths and weaknesses. Work will be collected throughout the year and sent home at the end of the year.

Child Management/Guidance Methods

At Northside we teach children to respect themselves, respect authority, and consider others more important than themselves. The children are given the opportunity to practice self-control and to accept responsibility for choices and actions, and to understand that there are consequences. We help children learn to use toys and materials properly by setting clear limits and modeling the desired behavior.

In guiding and disciplining young children, God must be our example. He always lovingly, patiently, but firmly guides us and disciplines us. The teacher, with the help of the parent, must understand the individual differences of each child and then choose appropriate practices. The home and school must work as partners, helping each other understand the child and reinforce, as well as negate, certain behaviors, making early education a pleasant experience. It is against our policy to use physical punishment or verbal abuse.

The following may be utilized as the situation warrants (all staff follow these practices):

- 1. Reinforcement and praise of good behavior
- 2. Reviewing expectations
- 3. Redirecting (verbally/physically)
- 4. Discussing consequences
- 5. Reflection (separating from the group as in time out)
- 6. Removal of privileges (closing an activity)
- 7. Relocation and/or restraining* if safety of others is an issue
- 8. Parental conferences (phone and/or in person)
- 9. Requesting parental discipline and/or removal of child from school for a specified number of days (suspension)
- 10. Disenrolling the child from the school

*If a child is consistently engaging in behavior that could hurt him or others, it may become necessary to disenroll the child. Before disenrollment, every attempt will be made to work together with the child's family to negate the behavior. This may include the use of a behavior management plan. This plan would be developed in conjunction with the child's teacher, the administrator, and the parents.

Parent/Teacher Conferences

Teachers will arrange and conduct a conference with the parents of each student at least twice a year (fall and spring). The office staff will assist the teachers and parents in arranging such conferences. Teachers should arrange and conduct parent/teacher

conferences with the parents of any student experiencing academic difficulties on an asneeded basis.

Custody Agreements

Northside treats each parent of our children fairly. If there is any legal reason why we are not permitted to send your child home with their non-residential parent, a copy of the official legal document must be kept on file in the school office.

Child Abuse

All school employees are required under Section 2151.421 of the Ohio Revised Code to report any suspicion of child abuse or neglect.

Preschool Dress Guidelines

The most up-to-date <u>Dress Code</u> is available on the website.

Meals and Snacks

Northside provides a morning snack between 10:00 - 10:45 a.m. A nutritious snack, which includes two foods from the four basic food groups, will be provided. Teachers will post the snack menu for your information. The school encourages parents to not send candy and soft drinks.

Lunch

Parents of full-day students are expected to provide a lunch for their child. The school does not provide lunches.

Food Storage

All food items must be stored in an insulated box/bag clearly marked with your child's name. Lunches will be stored in the classroom. Please be sure to include ice packs in your child's lunch if certain foods need to be kept cold.

Nutrition Suggestions

Minimum portion sizes for 3 - 6-year olds should consist of nutritional food from the following food groups:

| Food Group | Examples | Serving size |
|-------------------|--|--|
| Protein | Meat Cheese Eggs Peanut Butter Cottage Cheese | 1½ oz. ½ oz. large Tbsp. oz. |
| Grains | Bread Crackers Bun/Bagel | 1 slice 2-3 small ½ regular size |
| Fruits/Vegetables | Oranges Peaches Apples Strawberries Carrots Green vegetables Tomato juice 100% fruit juice | 4 oz. each |
| Dairy | Milk Cheese | 6 oz. ³ / ₄ oz. |

Outdoor Play

Research has shown that children stay healthier when they have daily outdoor play. Based on this information, outdoor play will be included in our program daily. We will limit the amount of time outside when the temperatures are very warm or very cold. Children will not have outside recess when the temperature (wind chill and heat index factored in) drop below 26 degrees or rise above 90 degrees. If the situation requires, we will also adjust outdoor time due to rain, threatening weather, ozone warning, etc. On days that outdoor play is not provided due to these conditions, we will include a time for indoor gross motor activities in our gymnasium. Please send your child with the proper clothing so they may be comfortable and safe whenever we are outside including a hats and mittens in the wintertime.

Parent Participation

Parents are encouraged to participate whenever possible in the activities at Northside. Parents are asked to schedule their participation with the classroom teacher ahead of time. When arriving to participate, parents are required to sign in at the school office first. Parents may wish to attend field trips, class parties, and special luncheons or simply

stop in to join the daily fun. Teachers can be available to discuss a child's progress or needs. However, due to staff responsibilities and schedules, parents are asked to make appointments with staff when it is necessary to engage in any lengthy conversations. Teachers want to be able to focus on you and your child at these times.

If parents have any concerns or questions at any time, it is recommended that the following chain of command be used until an answer or solution is found.

- 1. Child's teacher
- 2. Administrator
- 3. School Board Member
- 4. Pastor/Elders of Calvary Bible Church

Employees with concerns are asked to follow the same chain of command, starting with the administrator.

Please feel free to bring concerns up when they occur. Often, they can be addressed when they are little problems, before they grow into bigger problems. The staff fully realizes that you are entrusting us with your little ones, and we want our relationship to be a good one.

Field Trips/Transportation Policy

Northside will not transport children in emergency situations. If a child requires transportation, the parent or the emergency squad will be contacted.

We may take periodic field trips. The students will be transported either in a school bus with a trained staff member on board or in parents' vehicles. Before departing the center, a count will be taken of all the children, and they will be marked on a separate attendance sheet, specifically created for the trip. Upon arrival at destination, another count will be taken to assure that all the children have safely arrived. This process will be repeated upon leaving the destination and returning to the school. During field trips, each staff member will have specific children that they are responsible for supervising. Before any child participates in a field trip, the school will obtain written permission from the parent or guardian.

Arrival and Departure Procedures

When the child is brought to Northside in the morning, the child must be physically walked into the building and signed in by the accompanying adult. Our staff is trained to make a visual check of each student upon arrival to our school. After escorting the child to their cubby, the parent will then sign the child in with the teacher. Our staff

keeps very close supervision of the children throughout the day, as well as when each child arrives and departs. Please pick up the child from the school carline in front of the morning latchkey door. Children will be walked to the car and placed in the car by a child-care staff member. If someone other than the parent or guardian will be picking up a child, it is imperative that we have written or verbal consent from the parent on or before that day. If we are not familiar with the person picking up a child, we may call the parent for confirmation before we allow the child to leave the school. NCS reserves the right to request an ID of any person attempting to pick up a child from our school.

If a parent plans to stay in the building longer than 15 minutes in the morning, they must sign in and out at the office. All visitors throughout the day must stop in the school office to sign in and receive a visitor's badge, and then sign out when leaving.

Attendance/Absence Policy

Our preschool curriculum instruction begins at 8:15 a.m. We ask that all students be here by this time so they will receive the full benefit of instruction and will not disrupt the class by a late arrival. Any child who is brought to school late (8:15 a.m. or later) must be walked into the school office and signed in by the parent and then walked to their classroom by the parent. If your child is absent, you are requested to call the school office and report their absence to us by 9:00 a.m. If we do not receive a call from you, we will attempt to contact you by phone to ascertain your child's whereabouts.

Management of Illnesses

Northside provides children with a clean and healthy environment. However, we realize that children become ill from time to time. If this is your child's first group care experience, it is possible that they may experience more frequent illnesses at the beginning before their immune system becomes more active. We observe all children as they enter the program to quickly assess their general health. We ask that you not bring a sick child to the school. If your child comes to school sick, we will call and request that someone come and pick them up. Please have a backup care plan in place if you are not able to take time off to pick up and care for your child.

A child with any of the following symptoms will be immediately isolated and discharged to the parent or emergency contact:

- Temperature of 100° F in combination with any other signs of illness
- Diarrhea (more than three abnormally loose stools within 24-hour period)
- Severe coughing (causing the child to become red in the face or to make a whooping sound)

- Difficult or rapid breathing
- Yellowish skin or eyes
- Redness of the eye or eyelid, thick and purulent (pus) discharge, matted eyelashes, burning, itching or eye pain
- Untreated skin patches, unusual spots, or rashes
- Unusually dark urine or grey or white stools
- Stiff neck with an elevated temperature
- Evidence of untreated lice, scabies, or parasitic infestation
- Vomiting more than once or when accompanied by any other sign of illness
- Sore throat or difficulty swallowing
- Or other symptoms of contagious illness or injury

Any child demonstrating signs of illness not listed above will be isolated and carefully observed for symptoms. The parent will be notified. If a child does not feel well enough to participate in the school activities the parent will be called to pick up the child. Anytime a child is isolated they will be kept within sight and hearing of a staff member. The cot and any linens used will be washed and disinfected before being used again.

Parents will be notified by a sign on the door if children have been exposed to a communicable illness. Children will be readmitted to the school after at least 24 hours of being free of fever and other symptoms. If they are not symptom free, a doctor's note will be required stating that the child is not contagious.

Medications

The school will administer medications to a child only after the parent or guardian completes a Request for Medication form. All proper sections must be completed, and the medication handed to the teacher each day. Medications will be stored in a designated area inaccessible to children. Medications may NOT be stored in child's cubby or book bag. Students should not bring cough drops, ointments, or lotions to school.

Prescription medications must be in their original container and administered in accordance with instructions on the label. Over the counter medications must also be administered in accordance with label instructions. If parents request any different dosages or uses, a physician must provide written instructions on the Request for Medication form.

Over the counter medications will not be administered for more than three days without instructions from a physician.

Food Supplements or Modified Diets: If your child requires a food supplement or a modified diet, you must secure written information from your physician regarding this. Please speak with the administrator for more details.

Accidents/Emergencies

The school has devised several procedures to follow if an emergency would occur while a child is in the school's care. In the event of a fire or tornado, staff would follow the written instructions posted in each classroom, describing emergency evacuation routes and the procedures to be followed to assure that children have arrived at the designated spot. To prepare children for the unlikely need to evacuate, the school does conduct fire drills and tornado drills as required by the state. Should we need to evacuate due to fire or weather conditions, or the loss of power, heat, or water to the school, our emergency destination is the gymnasium (Deubner Center - building 2645). If the immediate area must be evacuated, we will evacuate to Westerville Bible Church, north parking lot. A sign will be posted in front of the building indicating that we have been evacuated and the location where you can pick up your child. Parents will also be contacted as soon as possible to come to pick up their child. If a parent cannot be reached, we will contact the emergency contacts as listed on the child's enrollment information.

In the unlikely event there would be an environmental threat or a threat of violence, the staff will: secure the children in the safest location possible, contact and follow the directions given by the proper authorities and contact the parents as soon as the situation allows. An incident report would also be provided to the parents.

There is always one staff member present that has received training in First Aid/CPR and Communicable Diseases. In the case of a minor accident/injury staff will administer basic first aid and TLC. If the injury/illness would be more serious, first aid would be administered, and the parents would be contacted immediately to assist in deciding an appropriate course of action. If any injury/illness is life threatening, the EMS will be contacted, parents will be notified, and a staff member will accompany the child to the hospital with all available health records. Staff members may not use their personal vehicles to transport a child to the hospital. Only parents or EMS will transport.

An incident/injury report will be completed, and given to the person picking up the child, on the day of the incident/injury, if any of the following occur:

- The child has an illness, accident, or injury which requires first aid
- The child receives a bump or blow to the head
- The child must be transported by an emergency squad
- An unusual or unexpected event occurs which jeopardizes the safety of the child

If a child requires emergency transportation, the report shall be available within twenty-four hours after the incident occurs.

School Delay and Closing Policies and Procedures

Family safety is our greatest concern when there are adverse weather conditions. Northside Christian School has students from a large geographical portion of Central Ohio with many variations in the weather. Students will be excused anytime parents deem it unsafe to drive during adverse weather conditions in their area.

In determining whether to delay (two hours) or close school we will consider recommendations of highway and safety forces, road conditions, weather forecast, rush hour traffic and what other area schools are doing.

Please have back-up day care and transportation plans at the beginning of the school year. For more information on <u>Closing and Delayed Start</u>, visit the website.

Latchkey

<u>Latchkey</u> information is available on the website.